
KENT COUNTY JAIL 
Chestertown, Maryland 

(19th) 

K-440 

The old Kent County Jail is a large two-and-one-half story brick 

structure located directly north of the original Kent Courthouse. In 

conjunction with Emanuel Episcopal Church it forms a kind of side court-

yard to the Courthouse. Northeast of the Jail partially obscured by 

later additions, is the stable built to serve the county complex. 

The old Jail building is significant because it is a dated 

example of a public building of the late 19th century. In addition, its 

siting shows a deliberate effort on the part of the County Government 

and the designer to create a well defined and attractive governmental 

square. The selection of building form, material and detailing by the 

architect, J.C. Neilson, shows a careful and thoughtfull attempt to 

relate this building to its neighbor , the County Courthouse, while 

at the same time expressing architectural ideas derived from the Queen 

Anne Style which was popular at that time. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The old Kent County Jail is a large two-and-one-half story brick structure located 

directly north of the original Kent Courthouse. In conjunction with Emanuel Episcopal 

Church it forms a kind of side courtyard to the Courthouse. Northeast of the Jail 

partially obscured by later additions, is the stable built to serve the county complex. 

The Jail building is an assymetrical T in plan with the "tail" of the T running 

parallel to Cross Street. The "head" of the T is three bays long and three bays deep. 

The "tail" of the T is two bays long and one bay deep. Two and a half stories in 

height overall, the portion of the building which makes up the "tail" of the T-plan is 

slightly taller. The slate roof of the building is a steep hip with a built-in gutter 

which breaks the slope of the roo£ just above the eave-line. 

The architect of the Jail selected bricks which closely resemble the bricks of 

the 1860 Courthouse. Dark orange in color and regular in shape, they are laid in 

common bond with well-defined white mortar joints. The cornice of the Jail exactly 

duplicates the cornice of the Courthouse with the use of one-stretcher wide, three-

step corbels with alternate corbels recessed along the entire cornice. Although the 

Courthouse cornice is enriched with wooden brackets, the cornice of the Jail is left 

plain. Another brick feature which resembles the older building is the water table; 

that of the Jail is molded while the Courthouse water table is plain. 

The building is entered via wooden porches located in the interior corners. 

The porches have shallow hipped or shed roofs covered with raised-seam roofing, bold 

turned wooden posts, pierced work balustrades and exposed roof joists. The main 

entrance has a pair of flush beaded double doors with a transom light. 

Windows are evenly spaced throughout the building although several of the 

window bays on the first floor are left blank. The central windows of the projectins 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 



Ill SIGNIFICANCE 

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW 

_PREHISTORIC _ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC X_COMMUNITY PLANNING _LANDSC.APE ARCHITECTURE _RELIGION 

_1400-1499 _ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC _CONSERVATION _LAW _SCIENCE 

_1500-1599 _AGRICULTURE -ECONOMICS _LITERATURE _SCULPTURE 

_ 1600-1699 lYIRCHITECTURE -EDUCATION _MILITARY _SQCIAUHUMANITARIAN 

_1700-1799 _ART _ENGINEERING _MUSIC _THEATER 

K-1800-1899 _COMMERCE _EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT _PHILOSOPHY _TRANSPORTATION 
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SPECIFIC DATES 1884 (on datestone) BUILDER/ARCHITECT J.C. Neilson; H .M .Stuart, Builder 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The old Jail building is significant because it is a dated example of a public 

building of the late 19th century. In addition, its siting shows a deliberate effort 

on the part of the County Government and the designer to create a well defined and 

attractive governmental square. The selection of building form, material and 

detailing by the architect, J.C. Neilson, shows a careful and tl71sughtful .Ctempt to 

relate this building to its neighbor , the County Courthouse, while at the same 

:ime expressing architectural ideas derived from the Queen Anne Style which was 

popular at that time. 

The future of the old Jail and its companion carriage house is uncertain. In 

1969 when preservation of historic buildings was less popular and less feasible 

economically -- than today, an extension of the old Kent Court House was constructed 

with an enormous Georgian Revival portico a few feet behind the rear wall of the Jail. 

The idea was to replace the Jail with a new, more liveable structure, and destroy the 

old building. Since that time, however, the fate of the Jail building has become a 

matter of public debate, and recently the possibility of moving the structure to a 

site nearby has been suggested. 

Because its style, scale, and materials make it compatible with the public 

buildings of Chestertown and because of its sound structural condition, the building 

appears to-be an excellent candidate for adaptive reuse, possibly for public or 

private offices . . By careful siting -- if moved -- and by equally careful redesign of 

the interior, it could continue to be an asset to the governmental center of Kent Cot.nt~ 
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
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ment of individual property rights. 

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust 
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#7 Description (cont'd) K-440 2. 

pavillions are emphasized by a corbelled projection. Six over six and nine over 
nine sash, l" bead-frames, and projecting stone sills are used throughout. It is 
interesting to note the close correspondence between the windows of the Courthouse; 
both buildings have segmentally arched heads and windows of similiar proportions. 

Two kinds of dormers light the upper story. In the narrow tail of the "T" 
the 12 over 12 sash windows of the dormers are set so that they cut into the cornice 
line, and, as a result, the eaves of the dormer roofs rest on the building roof. 
The space above the windows is covered with imbricated slate shingles. The dormers 
in the rest of the building have 8 over 8 sash windows and shallow pitched roofs; 
they are set between the window bays but above the cornice lines. 

As reflected in the plan, the interior spaces are zoned into two parts; the 
head of· the T contains cells for prisoners while public rooms, offices, and the 
Sheriff's quarters are located in the tail. 

Interior doors in public areas have beaded surrounds with an ogee backband. 
The doors themselves either have 6 flush, beaded panels or are thick board doors. 
The mantles that remain are simple boards supported by cast iron bracketts. In 
the major· rooms are reeded chair rails, about 5" wide. The cells on the first 
fllor are located in a row of brick barrel vaults that provide security and 
structural support for the steel-plated cells on the second floor. Still in place 
on the first fllor are the cast iron rings, imbedded into the walls of the cells, 
that were used to restrain unruly inmates; and the slots in the kitchen walls 
for passing food into the cell block also remain. In contrast to the dungeon-like 
first floor cells, the quarters on the second floor are larger and have large 
(though barred) windows. 

Behind the Jail is the stable building, a l~ story brick structure erected 
about 1880 to serve the county governm(j:nt. This small building which now houses 
the State Police has lost most of its interior detail, but retains a pair of 
wooden loft doors in a front gable on its south east facade. The southern side 
of the building has been extended by a catslide addition. This structure is one 
of the last stables remaining in downtown Chestertown. 
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K-440 
Kent County Jail and Sherriff's House 
Chestertown 
Photo courtesy of James Wollon 
no additional information available 
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